CONFIDENTIAL

From: __

Sent: 5/10/202111:48:57 PM
To: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO |
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] FW: COVID Genomic Sequencing

Rob—sorry forthe delay. Respondingonyourquestions below. We’ll also come back toyou with more details on your
question around demotions—will have better contextforyouina dayor soto betterexplain what’s happeningwhen we
demote content but wanted to getas much as | had to you tonight. Additionally—tomorrow we’re planningtosome
comms around our efforts around Covid —will send thatin a separate message and will include Courtney as well.

We lookedintowhy that post had so many views despite having so few comments and firstly, the original poster(“Dee
Block”) only allows friends or friends-of-friends to comment on their posts, orthey’ve turned commenting off. The post,
along with many memesonthesite, was likely shared amongst people from within existing networks -i.e.from friends
sharing with each otheror people sharingin Groups.

You alsoraised some questions around groups. We have strong policies against false claims about COVID and vaccines
that we enforce - and when a Page, Group, or account repeatedly violates these policies we enforce penalties against
them, including removing entities that repeatedly break ourrules from our platforms. On at least 11 separate occasions,
individuals identified by the CCDH have had a presence on Facebook orInstagram permanently removed forviolating
our COVID-19 or vaccine misinformation policies.

Our automated detection uses a variety of signals to identify groups that might be dedicated to vaccine discouragement
regardless of the group name, so we are reviewing groups with high volumes of this content thatdon’t necessarily have
vaccine or health specifictopicsin theirname. We have taken down a number of entities with high follower count since
the launch of this policy who are clearly dedicated to promoting borderline content - forexample, we removed an |G
profile called “Rise up Melbourne” with 11k followers, and a Facebook group called “Reopen Alabama” with 34k
members.

We're workingto get you the next Top 100 report by Friday and note yourquestion about which of these we’re
promotingtotry and includein thisiteration.

more to come shortly.

From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO

Date: Friday, May 7, 2021 at 10:56 AM

To [—— b.com>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: COVID Genomic Sequencing

Yep— knew about this one. Thanks for flagging.

From: [N o1 com>
Sent: Friday, May 7, 2021 10:41 AM

To: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] FW: COVID GenomicSequencing

Hey—sorry fordelayinresponse —working on getting something back to you today with answers to below. Also wanted
to flagthat we are talking to HHS this afternoon about the potential to build atext based vaccine finderboton
WhatsApp, similartothe one launched last week forSMS. This came through -straightto our WA team—
wanted to make sure you had visibility.
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From: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO P
Date: Thursday, May 6, 2021 at 2:
To: I— . com>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: COVID Genomic Sequencing

So | guess| have two questions here:

1. He references the “three” widest reach posts, of which | believe thisis one:
>>https://www.facebook.com/DeeBlock253/posts/3528944520539112<<;

For one, it’sstill up and seems to have gotten pretty far. Andit’s got 365k shares with four comments. We’ve talked
aboutthisin a different context, but how does something likethat happen? The top post, the one fromthe Wisconsin
news station, has 2.1 million comments. Am | looking at one instance of sharing (so, one of the 365,000 shares) oris this
genuinelyapostthat has beenshared nearly 400,000 times but only four people commented onit? What isyour
assessmentofwhatisgoingonhere?

Won’tcome as a shock to you that we’re particularly interested in yourdemotion efforts, which | don’t think we have a
good handle on (and, based on the below, itdoesn’t seem like you do either). Not to sound like abroken record, but
how much contentis beingdemoted, and how effective are you at mitigating reach, and how quickly? As I’'ve said, |
don’tthink our positionisthatyoushould remove vaccine hesitant stuff. However, slowingit down seems reasonable. |
justcan’t describe whatit means or how you know its working.

Also, health groups:sure. Butitseems more likely thatanti-vaxstuffis movingin groupsthatare not about health but
are...mom centric, or otherspaces. Strikes me as the issue here is |ess from single-use anti-vaccineaccounts and more
about people who...do otherthingsand are alsovaccine hesitant. Seems like your “dedicated vaccine hesitancy” policy
isn’t stoppingthe disinfodozen —they’re being deemed as not dedicated -- so it feels like that problem likely carries over
to groups.

As alastthing, I'd beinterestedinseeingthis 100 rankingin terms of reach from things that you aren’t actively
promotingintheinfopanel. EG:the unicef one’sreachisbecause you’'re puttingitina big, giant box that says
“Facebook” onit, versusthe way it distributes naturally.

From:m%.com>

Sent: Saturday, May 1, 2:10 PM

To: Flaherty, Rob EOP/WHO <

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] FW:

Making sure you see this from Nick to Andy as well —around anytime to discuss any and all things...

From: @fb.com>
Date: Saturday, May 1, 2021 at 1:53 PM

To: Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO <_
Cc: — @ fb.com>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] FW: COVID Genomic Sequencing

Hi Andy,

Thanks to your team for sharing the research work with us - the team have spent some time reviewingthese and |
wanted tosend oversome details on where we're developing work in this space (and where we aren't).
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Firstly, | know Brian has sentthe latest version of the Top 100 content report to Rob yesterday eveningand | wanted to
send you a quick note on the three pieces of vaccine content that were seen by a high number of people before we
demotedthem. Although they don‘tviolate ourcommunity standards, we should have demoted them beforethey went
viral and this has exposed gapsin our operational and technical process.

€ teams have spentthe last 24 hrs analysing these gaps and are making a number of changes starting next week,
including setting up more dedicated monitoring for Covid vaccine content on the cusp of goingviral, applying stronger
demotionstoa broaderset of content, and settingup daily review and analysis so that we have a better real -time view
of whatis beingseen by lots of people. lwill be checking on this closely to make sure that these additional steps show
results - the stronger demotionsin particularshould deliver real impact. Please let me know if you’d like to discuss any
of thisin more detail.

Returningtothe points raised by the research - much of thisis faircommentand actually includes many of the integrity
effortswe’ve already deployed and are activelyimproving on, orare related to planned launches in the coming months.

Non-English mis/disinformation circulating without moderation (Spanish, Arabic, Chinese, among others) and; ISD
reports evidence of the global threat that anti-vaccination disinformation and misinformation represents across
languages and borders: Rolling ourefforts outglobally and in othercountries will take us some time, given the
complexity and scale - we think that this will take a number of months before we’ve fully scaled thiswork and we are
prioritizing languages where we know vaccine hesitancyis likely to be higher based on external data.

Do not distribute or amplify vaccine hesitancy, and Facebook should end group recommendations for groups with a
history of COVID-19 or vaccine misinformation: Much of the research you shared called on us to ensure that our
systems don’tamplify vaccine hesitancy contentand thisistop of mind forus. Inadditiontothe changes | mentioned
above, we have already removed all health groups from our recommendation feature on Facebook, and on Instagram
we filtervaccine-related accounts from our “accounts you may follow feature”. We also remove accounts that may
discourage vaccination from search features. We currently enforce on hashtags we know are shared to promote vaccine
hesitancy contentand are working to improve our automated systems here.

Monitoring events that host anti-vaccine and COVID disinformation: From our analysis, events do not make up a high
proportion of borderlinevaccine content that people see on Facebook right now, but we are working toimprove
automaticdetection for events hosting anti-vaccine and COVID content. Ourviral monitoring efforts will also help us
detect events thatare gaining views on Facebook, and we do remove events coordinatingin-person gatherings that
involve orencourage people who have COVID-19to join.

12 accounts are responsible for 73% of vaccine misinformation: Lastly, we continue to review accounts associated with
the 12 individualsidentified in the CCDH “Disinformation Dozen” report, but many of those either do not violate our
policies orhave ceased postingviolating content. Qur “Dedicated Vaccine Discouraging Entity” policy is designed to
remove groups and pages that are dedicated to sharing vaccine discouraging content and we continue to review and
enforce onthese where we become aware of them.

I realise that our position onthis continues to be a particularconcernfor youwhichis why our teams regularly e ngage
with a range of experts to checkwhetherwe are striking the right balance here. Inearly March, forinstance, we
discussed our planned approach with members of the “High Level Panel on Vaccine Confidence & Misinformation”
(organized by London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine and the CenterforStrategicand International Studies)
and we have checked more recently with HeidiLarson of the Vaccine Confidence Project too.

Amongexperts we have consulted, there isageneral sense that deleting more expressions of vaccine hesitancy might be
more counterproductive tothe goal of vaccine uptake because it could prevent hesitant people fromtalking through
their concerns and potentially reinforce the notion that there’s acover-up (especially, though not exclusively, in the US).
Given how complicated this continues to be, especiallydue to the recent news cycle about the safety of some vaccines,
we will of course continue to speak with experts on our position here and adapt curapproach as needed.
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Hope thisupdateis helpful —and obviously I’'m happy to speak any time.

Best

On 4/27/21, 3:33 AM, "Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO" <—wrote:

Thanks - | assume you may have staffthere.l hope they are well.

Sentfrom myiPhone

> On Apr27, 2021, at 12:11 AM,_@fb.com>wrote:
>

> Hi Andy

>

> | know you're focusing on India a fairamount. Just fyi, we're doing the following:
>

> - Amplifying localized authoritative information and services specificto this crisis (e.g., symptom triage information /
whentogo or notgo to a hospital given systems are overwhelmed) on platform and via ad credits;

> - Activating WhatsApp Bots for symptom tracking and to connect users to nearby health resources;

> - Curating relevant contentacross CIC, News, and Latest Updates forindia;

> - Proactively reviewing misinformation contentin English, Hindi, and Bengali; and

> - Making an up to $10M financial contribution to support some immediate needsin country (e.g., extending medical

supplies tounderprivileged, augmenting oxygen supply shortages, etc.)
>

> And Mark is keentosee what more we can do

>> >>>https://www.facebook.com/zuck/posts/10112926954780791%3C%3C<<;;

>

> Brian & team are intouch with USAID - but don't hesitate to point usto other next steps where we could be helpful.

>

> We alsoreceived the recommendations/observations from the rese arch organizations you met re covid misinfoetc
this afternoon - the teams are now looking atthem carefully, and I'll get back to you once that's done.

>

> Best

>

>
> 0n 4/22/21, 7:23 PM, "Slavitt, Andrew M. EOP/WHO" [ el rote:
>

| will arrange a call. Please let Kelseyknow the information onwhotoinclude. Thanks

Sentfrommy iPhone

>> On Apr 22, 2021, at 7:58 PM,-ﬂfb.com>wrote:

>>
>> Hi Andy
>>
>> As promised, more infofrom Priscilla Chan below and slides re the CZl work attached. Do tell me how an useful
connection can be made.
>>
>> Thx

>
>
>
>

MOLA_DEFSPROD_00017157



CONFIDENTIAL

>>

:

>

>>

>> Thanks forlookinginto this. CZI has been workingin this areasince before the pandemic. We built IDSeq
(Link<>>>>>https://www.discoveridseq.com/<<<;; < <>and technical write up attached) to sequence unknown
pathogens and then adapteditto do genomicsequencingfor COVIDand California Departments of publichealth. Right
now we are working with local departments thatare deploying thesefunds to build up theirinternal capacity. However,
we can't figure outif thereis a centralized vision of how all of these individual efforts are supposed to come back
togetherand if they do what the publicofficerfacingtoolis. Slides ontheissue we are tryingtoaddressis also attached .

>>

>> Would love totry to learn about any central plan to ensure that our work ends up being compatible and share back
any learningif helpful.

>>

>>

>>
>
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